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GENERAL INFORMATION

Telefénica 02 Czech Republic, as. (the "Company") has a form of a joint stock
company and is incorporated and domiciled in the Czech Republic. The address of its
registered office is Olsanska 5/55, Prague 3, 130 34, Czech Republic. As of June 2005,
the Company became a member of the Telefénica Group of companies (the "Telefénica
Group") with a parent company, Telefénica, S.A. (the "Telefonica™).

The Company's shares are traded on the Prague Stock Exchange and London Stock
Exchange (GDRs).

The number of employees employed with the Company amounted in average to 9,816
in 2006 (2005: 10,506).

These financial statements were approved for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors
on 22 February 2007.

Transfer of assets and liabilities (Up-stream merger) and restructuring of the
Company in 2006

On 27 April 2006, the General Shareholders Meeting approved a transfer of assets and
liabilities of the former 100% subsidiary Eurotel Praha, spol. s r.o. {the "former Eurotel”)
to CESKY TELECOM, a.s. and approved an Agreement on transfer of assets and liabilities
between CESKY TELECOM, a.s. and former Eurotel. The General Shareholders Meeting
further approved a change in the Articles of Association related to a transfer of the
National Property Fund’s stake in 2005.

In addition, the Company changed its registered name from CESKY TELECOM, a.s.
to Telefonica O2 Czech Republic, a.s. within the transfer of assets and liabilities process
as a result of the Company’s integration with the Telefonica Group.

As a result of the Decision of the General Shareholders Meeting of 27 April 2006,
the following changes have been incorporated in the Company’s Register with effective
date 1 July 2006 and decisive date 1 January 2006:

- Dissolution of former Eurotel without liquidation and transfer of its assets
and liabilities to its sole shareholder CESKY TELECOM, a.s.

- Change of the registered name of CESKY TELECOM, a.s. to Telefonica 02 Czech
Republic, a.s.

Transfer of assets and liabilities (Up-stream merger) accounting

Pursuant to the Agreement on transfer of assets and liabilities in accordance
with Section 153c in conjunction with Sections 220p and 220d of the Commercial Code
signed on 3 May 2006, CESKY TELECOM, a.s. acquired all the assets and liabilities
of the former Eurotel with the decisive date of 1 January 2006.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.



Telefonica 02 Czech Republic, a.s. 7
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2006

In accordance with the requirements of the Commercial Code, an opening balance
sheet was prepared as at 1 January 2006 and constituted an aggregation of balance
sheet amounts and elimination of intercompany transactions between the two legacy
legal entities: CESKY TELECOM, a.s. and former Eurotel by using consistent accounting
policies as presented in the separate financial statements of the Companies for the year
ended 31 December 2005. The opening balance sheet was prepared solely in order
to comply with the requirements of the Commercial Code as a result of the
aforementioned transfer of assets and liabilities.

The carrying amounts of the former Eurotel's assets and liabilities (including goodwill)
used in the preparation of the financial statements of CESKY TELECOM, as.
as at 31 December 2005 were used as the measurement basis in the opening balance
sheet. Standard consolidation adjustments (being an elimination of respective
intercompany balances, adjustments reflecting purchase accounting and certain
accounting policy adjustments) were also performed when preparing the opening
balance sheet.

Brand names acquired by CESKY TELECOM, a.s. through business combination in 2003
by purchase of the remaining share in former Eurotel were originally determined
as having an indefinite useful life after adoption of revised IAS 38 from 1 January 2005,
because there was no foreseeable limit to the period over which the assets were
expected to generate net cash flows. After the acquisition by Telefanica, S.A., the
Company reassessed its intangible assets previously acquired through business
combination and reviewed the relating useful lives. The Company decided, as a result of
this assessment, to change the useful lives of brand names with indefinite useful lives
from indefinite to finite. This change was accounted for as a change in an accounting
estimate and the revised useful lives were determined to be 30 months. From 1 July
2005, the date of change in indefinite useful life the Company amortizes these brand
names using the straight-line method. Upon the transfer of assets and liabilities in July
2006 and with respect to the re-branding process, the Company re-considered an
estimate of useful life of former Eurotel related brand names and accelerated their
amortization with final effect of a full write off as at 31 December 2006.

Assets and liabilities of other subsidiaries were not included in the opening balance
sheet. These other subsidiaries are recognised in the opening balance sheet as
Investment in subsidiaries.

Relationship with the Czech state, privatisation and acquisition process finalised
in 2005

The Czech state, through the National Property Fund of the Czech Republic {the “NPF"),
had been the majority shareholder of the Company until the take-over of Telefdnica,
S.A. and completion of the privatisation process in June 2005. As a majority
shareholder, the NPF had the power to control certain decisions taken at the General

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Shareholders’ Meetings, including the election of the members of the Supervisory Board
and the approval of dividend payments.

The acquisition process was completed on 16 June 2005, once Telefdnica, S.A. paid
the remaining 90% of the purchase price, and the NPF transferred its 51.1% stake
in the Company to Telefénica, S.A. Telefdnica, S.A. then increased its stake in the
Company from 51.1% to 69.4% of the common stock.

Telefénica, S.A. applied effectively its control at the General Shareholders Meeting,
which took place on 23 June 2005. The Company was included in the Telefénica Group
since finalisation of the take-over. Mutual transactions, representing generally supplies
of telecommunication services take place amongst Telefénica companies. All these
transactions are being made under common commercial terms and conditions that are
not more preferable than those offered to other customers and suppliers.

The Company supplies telecommunication services to and acquires services from various
state-owned entities, agencies and companies in which the Czech state holds
the majority shareholding. All such transactions are made under normal commercial
terms and conditions that are not more preferable than those available to other
customers and suppliers. In aggregate, the state-owned entities, agencies and
companies comprise one of the Company’s largest customers. In providing services to
these entities, agencies and companies, Telefénica 02 Czech Republic, a.s. conducts
business with them as separate customers. Services provided to any individual
governmental entity, agency or state-owned company do not represent a significant
component of the Company’s revenues.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.



Ell ERNST & YOUNG

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF TELEFONICA O2 CZECH REPUBLIC, a.s.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Telefénica O2 Czech Republic, a.s.
(“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2006 and the income
statement, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Muanagement's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with International. Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes:
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these tfinancial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controt
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate for the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

L

A Member of Ernst & Young Glebal - Ernst & Young Audit & Advisory, s.r.o., ¢len koncernu
with its registered office at Karlovo ndmésti 10, 120 00 Prague 2, Phone +420 225 335 T11 has been incorporated
in the Commercial Register administered by the Municipal Court in Prague, Section C, entry no. 88504, under Identification No. 26704153



Ell ERNST & YOUNG

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position

of the Company as at 31 December 2006, and of its financial performance and its cash flows

for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
- as adopted by the EU,

2 0 N

Ermst & Young Audit & Advisory, s.r.o., ¢len koncernu
Licence No. 401
Represented by

Joid

Brian Welsh
Partner

Magdalena Soucek
Auditor, Licence No. 1291

22 February 2007
Prague, Czech Republic

A Member of Ernst & Young Global - Ernst & Young Audit & Advisory, s.r.0., ¢len koncernu
with its registered office at Karlovo ndmésti 10, 120 00 Prague 2, Phane +420 225 335 111 has been incorporated
in the Commercial Register administered by the Municipal Court in Prague, Section C, entry no. 88504, under ldentification No. 26704753,
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(all tabular amounts in CZK million)

INCOME STATEMENT

Revenue

Gains from sale of non-current assets
Internal expenses capitalized in fixed assets
Operating expenses

Impairment loss

Depreciation and amortisation

Operating profit

Interest income

Interest expense

Other finance income (net)

Profit before income tax

Taxes on income

Profit for the ye'ar

Earnings per share {CZK) — basic*

Year ended
Notes 31 December 2006 31 December 2005

2 61,307 61,037
a8 116

2 879 589
3 (33,954) (33,271)
8,9,10 (253) {1,261)
8.9 (16,726) (17.78%)
11,351 9,421

4 148 47
4 (431) (748)
4 26 47
11,094 8,767
5 (2.772) (2,665)
8,322 6,102

6 26 19

* There is no dilution of earnings as no convertible instruments have been issued by the Company.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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BALANCE SHEET

Notes 31 December 2006 31_December 2005
ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 8 78,686 ) 87,973
Intangible assets 9 21,508 22,846
Available-for-sale investments 13 - 58
Held-to-maturity investments 13 27 29
Investment in subsidiaries and associate 28 77 78
Other financial assets 12 376 412
Non-current assets 100,674 111,396
Inventories 11 987 716
Receivables and prepayments 12 8,579 8,579
Available-for-sale investments 13 56 -
Cash and cash equivalents 14 7,298 3,572
Current assets ' 16,920 12,867
Non-current assets classified as held for sale 8 203 360
Total assets 117,797 124,6
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Ordinary shares 24 32,205 32,209
Share premium 30,816 30,816
Retained earnings, funds and reserves 25,590 31,775
Total equity 88,615 94,800
Long-term financial debts 16 9,156 9,324
Deferred taxes 17 4,494 5,423
Non-current provisions for liabilities and charges 19 2,037 2,11
Non-current other liabilities 15 805 1.264
Neon-current liabilities 16,492 18,122
Short-term financial debts 16 207 307
Trade and other payables 15 10,920 10,181
Income tax liability 728 590
Provisions for liahilities and charges 19 835 623
Current liabilities 12.690 11.701
Total liabilities 29,182 29.823
Total equity and liabilities 117,797 4,623

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 22 February 2007 and were
signed on its behalf by:

Q(/% M i N

Jaime Smlth Basterra Ramon Ros
Chalrman of the Board of Directors Member of the Board of Directars
and Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Foreign
exchange
Share Share Hedging translation Retained
Notes capital premium _reserve reserve Funds* earnings Total
Balance at 1 January 2005 32,203 30,816 47 13 5,627 20,056 88,674

Fair value losses {net of tax) ‘ ‘
- cash flow hedges 26 - - 36 . - - - 36

Currency translation differences

- amount arising in year - - (13} - - (13
Changes in statutory reserves and

other movements - - - 405 (404) 1

Net incomef{expense) recognised

directly in equity - 36 (13) 405 (404) 24

:
L

Net profit - - - - 6,102 6,102
Balance at 31 December 2005
Merger impact - funds - - - (121} 121 -

Balance at 1 January 2006
as restated 2,209  30.816 (11}

Fair value gains (net of tax)

:

.

- cash flow hedges 26 - - (8) - - - (8
Currency translation differences

- amount arising in year . - - N - - 2)
Changes in statutory reserves and

other mavements - - 1 _(3 _358 359y (3)
Net incomeAexpense) recognised

directly in equity - - (7 (5) 358 {359} {13}
Dividends declared in 2006 7 - - - - - (14,494)  (14,494)
Net profit - - - - - 8.322 8.322
Balance at 31 December 2006 32,209 30818 _(18) A5) 6.269 19,344  88.615

* Refer Note 24 regarding amounts not available for distribution.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2006

{all tabular amounts in CZK million)

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from cperations
Interest paid

Interest received

Income tax paid

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from marketable securities

Cash purchase of financial investments

Grant of loan

Repayment of loan

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Praceeds from borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Dividends — paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Effects of exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at the year end

Year ended
Notes 31 December 2006 31 December 2005
26 28,176 27,734
(429) (887}
186 47
(3.562) {3.262)
24,371 23,632
(4,710) (4,035)
{1,323) (1,156)
214 235
- 184
(40) -
(3,446) -
3,253 -
(6,052) (4,772}
- 11,580
- (27,393)
(14,494) -
(14,494) {(15,813)
3,825 3,047
3,471 425
7 (1)
14 _£.298 3471

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Index to accounting policies ' Pages
A Basis of preparation 11
B Foreign currencies 14
C Property, plant and equipment 14
D Intangible assets 15
E Non-current assets classified as held for sale 16
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G Investments and other financial assets 17
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T Critical accounting estimates and judgments 29
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2006 '
{all tabular amounts in CZK million)

A Basis of preparation

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements were prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and all applicable IFRSs adopted by the EU. IFRS comprise
standards and interpretations approved by the International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB"} and the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC").

Effective from 1 January 2005, a change in the Czech Act on Accounting No. 563/1991

Coll. requires the Company to prepare its financial statements in accordance with IFRS

adopted by the EU (Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002). At this particular time, due to the

endorsement process of the EU and the activities of the Company, there is no difference
“in the policies applied by the Company between IFRS and IFRS adopted by the EU.

The financial statements are the separate financial statements of the Company and meet
requirements of IFRS with respect to the preparation of parent's separate financial
statements. The Company also issued consolidated financial statements prepared for the
same period in accordance with IFRS, which were approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 22 February 2007.

The financial statements were prepared under the historical cost convention except for
non-current assets held for sale, financial derivatives, available for sale investment
securities, share based payment liability and certain assets and liabilities acquired during
business combinations, as disclosed in the accounting policies below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS required the Company
to use certain critical accounting estimates. It also required management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note T.

The amounts shown in these financial statements are presented in millions Czech Crowns
(*CZK™), if not stated otherwise. )

Adoption of IFRS standards and interpretations

In 2006, the Company applied the below stated IFRS, which are relevant to its operations:

IAS 1 (revised 2005) Presentation of Financial Statements

IAS 2 (revised 2003) Inventories

[AS 7 (revised 2005) Cash flow staterment

IAS 8 (revised 2003) Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
IAS 10 (revised 2003) Events after Balance Sheet Date

IAS 11 Construction contracts
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{(all tabular amounts in CZK millien)

12

IAS 12
IAS 14
IAS 16 (revised 2003}
IAS 17 (revised 2003)
IAS 18
IAS 19
IAS 20

IAS 21 (revised 2005)
IAS 23

IAS 24 (revised 2003)
IAS 27 (revised 2003)
IAS 28 (revised 2003)
IAS 32 (revised 2004)
IAS 33 (revised 2003)
IAS 36 (revised 2004)
IAS 37

IAS 38 (revised 2004)
IAS 39 (revised 2005)
IAS 40

IFRS 2 (issued 2004)
IFRS 3 (issued 2004)
IFRS 5 (issued 2004)

Income Taxes

Segment Reporting

Property, Plant and Equipment

Leases

Revenue

Employee Benefits

Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure
of Government Assistance

The effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
Borrowing Costs

Related Party Disclosures

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
[nvestments in Associates

Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation
Earnings per Share

Impairment of Assets

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Intangible Assets

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

Investment Property
Share-based Payments
Business Combinations

Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

IFRS 3 requires simultaneous adoption with IAS 36 and IAS 38.
IAS 39 requires simultaneous adoption with IAS 32.

IFRIC 1 (issued 2001)

IFRIC 4 (effective date 1 January 2006)

" Changes in Existing Decommissioning, -

Restoration and Similar Liabilities

a Lease

Determining whether an Arrangement contains

Out of the above mentioned standards and interpretations, in 2006 the Company
newly adopted the following:

IAS 21 (revised 2005)

The Company adopted the amendments to [AS 21. As a result, all exchange differences
arising from a monetary item that forms part of the Company’s net investment in a foreign
operation are recognised in a separate component of equity in the financial statements
regardless of the currency in which the monetary item is denominated. This change had no
impact on the financial statements of the Company.

IFRIC 4 (effective date 1 January 2006) _
The adoption of this interpretation did not have any material effect relating to the

Company’s activities.
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Standards and interpretations issued but not early adopted by the Company

IFRS 7, 1AS 30 and IAS 32 (issued in 2005, effective date 1 January 2007) Financial
Instruments: Disclosures - the Company does not expect any material effect on the Balance
Sheet and the Income Statement relating to the adoption of this standard from the
effective date 1 January 2007. This adoption will affect certain disclosures in the notes
to the financial statements.

Amendments to !AS 1 (issued 2005, effective date 1 lJanuary 2007) Presentation of
financial statements, Capital disclosures — the Company does not expect any material
effect on the Balance Sheet and the Income Statement relating to the adoption of this
amendment from the effective date 1 January 2007. This adoption will affect certain
disclosures in the notes to the financial statements.

IFRS 8 Operating Segments (effective date 1 January 2009} - the Company does not expect
any material effect on the Balance Sheet and the Income Statement relating to the
adoption of this standard from the effective date 1 January 2009. This adoption will affect
certain disclosures in the notes to the financial statements.

IFRIC 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under IAS 29 Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies {effective date 1 March 2006) — the interpretation does not
apply to the Company’s activities.

IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives (effective date 1 June 2006) — the Company
does not expect any material effect relating to the adoption of this interpretation since
the effective date 1 June 2006.

IFRIC 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment (effective date 1 November 2006) -
the Company does not expect any material effect relating to the adoption of this
interpretation since the effective date 1 November 2006.

IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements {(effective date 1 January 2008) - the'Company
does not expect any material effect relating to the adoption of this interpretation from the
effective date 1 January 2008. '

IFRIC 8 Scope of IFRS 2 (effective date 1 May 2006)
IFRIC 11 IFRS 2 Group and Treasury Share Transactions (effective date 1 March 2007)
This adoption will affect certain disclosures in the notes to the financial statements.

The Company does not intend to early adopt any of those standards and interpretations
before their effective date.
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B Foreign currencies

(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each entity included in the Company are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (“the functional currency”). The financial statements are presented
in Czech Crowns ("CZK"), which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using
the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised
in the income statement, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow
hedges. Such balances of monetary items are translated at period-end exchange
rates. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

C Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost and, except for freehold
land, are subsequently carried at its cost less any accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Freehold land is subsequently stated at cost less
impairment charges.

Property, plant and equipment include all costs directly attributable to bringing the asset
to working condition for its intended use. With respect to the construction of the network,
this comprises all expenditure up to the customers’ premises, including the cost
of contractors, materials, direct labour costs and interest cost incurred during the course
of construction.

Repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

ltems of property, plant and equipment that are retired, are not intended for salé and are
not expected to create any future economic benefits or are otherwise disposed of, are
eliminated from the balance sheet, along with the corresponding accumulated
depreciation. Any gain or loss arising from retirement or disposal is included in net
operating income, i.e. net gain or loss is determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.
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(all tabular amounts in CZK million)

ltems of property, plant and equipment, excluding freehold land, are depreciated from
the time they are available for use, using the straight-line method. Depreciation ceases
at the earlier of the date the asset is de-recognised or the date the asset is classified as held
for sale.

Depreciation does not cease when the asset becomes temporarily idle or retired from active
use unless the asset is fully depreciated.

Estimated useful lives adopted in these financial statements are as follows:

Years
Freehold buildings up to 40
Cable and other related plant 5to 25
Exchanges and related equipment upto 10
Other fixed assets ' 21010

Freehold land is not depreciated as it is deemed to have an indefinite life.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount
if the asset’s carrying amount is greater then its estimated recoverable amount (refer to
Note F Impairment of assets).

D Intangible assets

Intangible assets include computer software, purchased goodwill, licenses, trade names,
customer base and roaming contracts. Computer software mainly represents the external
acquisition costs of the Company’s information systems that are intended for use within
the Company. Generally, costs associated with developing or maintaining computer
software programs are recognised as an expense as incurred. However, costs that are
directly associated with identifiable and unique software products controlled by the
Company and that have a probable economic benefit exceeding the cost beyond one year,
are recognised as intangible assets. Computer software costs recognised as assets are
amortised using the straight-line method over their useful lives, generally one to five years.

Acquired licenses are recorded at cost and amortised on a straight-line method basis over
the remaining life of the license (i.e. over 15 to 20 years), from the start of commercial
service, which best reflects the pattern by which the economic benefits of the intangible
assets will be utilised by the Company.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful life are not amortised. They are subject to the
regular impairment reviews (see Note 9 and Note 10).
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(all tabular amounts in CZK million)

The Company reviews at least at the balance sheet date the useful lives of intangible assets
that are not amortised to determine whether events and circumstances continue to
support an indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If they do not, the change in the
useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for as a change in an
accounting estimate.

On the balance sheet date, carrying amounts, residual values and the useful lives of assets
are reviewed, revised and if necessary prospectively amended and accounted for as a
change in an accounting estimate.

Intangible assets that are no longer in use and it is not expected any future economic
benefits or that are disposed of for any other reason are de-recognised from the balance
sheet together with corresponding accumulated depreciation (for amortised assets only).
All gains or losses arising in this respect are recognised in net operating income, i.e. net
gain or loss is determined as the difference between net disposal proceeds, if any, and the
carrying amount of the asset. '

Intangible assets, with the exception of assets with indefinite useful life, are amortised
using the straight-line method from the time they are available for use. Amortisation
ceases at the earlier of the date the asset is de-recognised, the date the asset is classified as
having the indefinite useful life or the date the asset is classified as held for sale.

E Non-current assets classified as held for sale

The Company dassifies separately in the balance sheet a non-current asset (or disposal
group) as held for sale if its carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. For this to be the case, the asset (or
disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only
to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such assets (or disposal groups), its sale
is highly probable and sale is expected within one year.

The Company measures a non-current asset (or disposal group) classified as held for sale
at the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

The Company recognizes an impairment loss for any initial or subsequent write-down
of the asset (or disposal group) to fair value less costs to sell and is accounted for as the
impairment loss with impact in the income statement of the relevant period.

From the moment the asset is classified as held for sale and eventually revaluated, it ceases
to be depreciated/amortised and impairment is only being determined.

Any gain from any subseguent increase in fair value less costs to sell, but not in excess
of the cumulative impairment loss that has been recognized, is determined and is
accounted for in the income statement.
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F Impairment of assets

Property, plant and equipment and other assets, including goodwill and intangible assets,
are reviewed for impairment losses whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, or at least on an annual basis for
goodwill and for intangibles with an indefinite useful life and for intangibles not yet in use.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the carrying amount of the
asset exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of an asset’s net selling price and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
level, for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

G Investments and other financial assets

The Company dassifies its financial assets into the following categories: financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets.

Financial assets that are acquired principally for the purpose of generating a profit from
short-term fluctuations in price are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and are included in current assets. During 2005 and 2006, the Company did not
hold any financial assets in this category.

Investments with a fixed maturity that management has the intent and ability to hold
to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity and are disclosed as current or non-current
assets, depending on the period in which the settlement will take place.

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market and are measured at amortised cost using an effective interest
rate method and are disclosed as current or non-current assets, depending on the period
in which the settlement will take place.

Investments intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be sold
in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates, are classified as available-for-
sale; these are included in non-current assets unless management has expressed the
intention of holding the investment for less than 12 months from the balance sheet date or
unless they will need to be sold to raise operating capital, in which case they are included
in current assets.

Management determines the appropriate classification of its investments at the time
of the purchase and re-evaluates such designation on a regular basis, as required
under 1AS 39. -

All purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade date, which is the date
that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. The cost of purchase includes all
transaction costs. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and available-for-sale
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investments are subsequently carried at fair value, whilst held-to-maturity investments are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Realised and unrealised
gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are included in the income statement in the period in which they
arise. On the contrary, unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value
of available-for-sale investments are included in equity in the period in which they arise,
except for impairment losses, until the financial asset is de-recognised, at which time
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is recognised in the income
statement.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether financial assets or groups
of financial assets are impaired.

(1)  Assets carried at amortized costs

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables or held to
maturity investments carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or through use of an
altowance account. The amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement.

The Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively
for financial assets that are not individually significant. If it is determined that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial assets, whether
significant or not, it is included in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and that group of financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is
or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised in the income statement and only to the extent that the
carrying amount of the financial asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal
date. '

(2)  Available-for-sale financial assets

If this asset is impaired, the cumulative loss that had been previously recognised (due to fair
value revaluation} directly in equity shall be removed from equity and recognised in profit
or loss even though the financial asset has not been derecognised.
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The amount of the cumulative loss that is removed from equity and recognised in profit or
loss shall be the difference between the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and the current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in profit or loss.

Reversals of impairment losses on debt instruments are reversed through profit or loss,
if the increase in fair value of the instrument can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in the income statement.

De-recognition of financial assets

A financial asset is de-recognised when:
a) the rights to receive cash flow from the asset have expired,

b) the Company retains the right to receive cash flow from the asset, but has assumed
an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under
a "pass-through” arrangement, or

c) the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the assets and
either has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset. -

H Leases

Leases under which a significant portion of the risks and benefits of ownership are effectively
retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating
leases are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment
that is required to be made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the
period in which termination takes place.

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Company bears substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are
capitalized at the inception of the lease at the lower of the fair value of the leased property
or the present value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is allocated
hetween the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance
balance outstanding. The corresponding lease obligations, net of finance charges,
are included in other long-term payables (depending on maturity). The interest element
of the finance cost is charged to the income statement over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period. If there is a reasonable certainty that the lessee will obtain ownership
by the end of the lease term, the period of expected use is the useful life of the asset;
otherwise the property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases are
depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the asset or the lease term.
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I Inventories

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or net realisable vaiue. Costs of inventories include
the purchase price and related cosis of acquisition (transport, customs duties and
insurance). The cost of inventory is determined using weighted average cost. Net realisable
value is the estimate of the selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the costs
of completion and selling expenses.

J Trade receivables

Trade receivables are carried at original invoice amount less allowance for impairment
of these receivables. Such allowance for impairment of trade receivables is established
if there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due
according tothe original terms of receivables. The amount of the allowance is the
difference between the carrying amount and the recoverable amount, being the present
value of expected cash flows, discounted at the initial market rate of interest for similar
borrowers. Cash flows relating to short-term receivables are usually not discounted.
The amount of the allowance is recognized in the income statement.

K Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purposes
of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings
in current liabilities on the balance sheet.

L Financial debts

Borrowings are recognised initially at the proceeds received, net of transaction costs
incurred. In subsequent periods, borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method; any difference between proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in.the income statement over the period of the
borrowings. '

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has unconditional right
to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Interest costs on borrowings used to finance the acquisition and construction of qualifying
assets are capitalized during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare
the asset for its intended use. Other borrowing costs are expensed.
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M Current and deferred income taxes
Taxation expense represents both current and deferred taxation, where appropriate.

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at
the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity
and not in the income statement.

- Deferred income taxation is calculated using the liability method applied to all temporary
differences arising between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their carrying values
for financial reporting purposes. Currently enacted tax rates and laws expected to apply
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled are used to determine the deferred
income tax.

The principal temporary differences arise from differences in the tax and accounting values
of property, plant and equipment, impairment of receivables and allowance for obsolete
and slow moving inventories, non tax deductible allowances and unused tax credits.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
-taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The Company accounts for the tax consequences of transactions and other events in the
same way that it accounts for the transactions and other events themselves. Thus, for
transactions and other events recognised in the income statement, any related tax effects
are also recognised in the income statement. For transactions and other events recognised
directly in equity, any related tax effects are also recognised directly in equity.

Deferred income tax assets and tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists
to set off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred income
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority. The same applies
for offsetting of current tax assets and liabilities.

N Employee benefits

(1)  Pension obligations

Contributions are made to the Government's health, retirement benefit and
unemployment schemes at the statutory rates applicable during the period and are based
on gross salary payments. The arrangements of the Government's health, retirement
benefit and unemployment schemes correspond to the arrangements for defined
contribution plans. The Company has no further payment obligations once the
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contributions have been paid. The expense for the contributions is charged to the income
statement in the same period as the related salary expense. The Company also makes
contributions to defined contribution schemes operated by external pension companies.
These contributions are charged to the income statement in the period to which the
contributions relate.

(2) Redundancy and termination benefits

Redundancy and termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before
the normal retirement or contract expiry date. The Company recognises redundancy and
termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to terminating the employment of
current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the balance sheet date are discounted to
present value. There are no redundancy and termination benefits falling due more than 12
months after balance sheet date.

{3) Bonus plans

The Company recognises a liability for bonuses based on a formula that takes into
consideration certain performance related measures, such as turnover or free cash flow,
after certain adjustments. The Company recognises a provision where contractually obliged
or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

O Share-based compensation

During 2006, the Company introduced performance compensation systems linked to the
market value of shares of the parent company, Telefdnica, S.A. Certain compensation
plans are settled in cash, while the others are settled via the delivery of shares.

IFRS 2 is applied to compensation schemes linked to the share price with the following
accounting treatment:

Option plans that can be cash-settled or equity-settled at the option of the employee are
recognized at the fair value on the grant date of the liability and equity components of the
compound instrument granted.

In the cash-settled share option plan, the total cost of the rights to shares granted are
expensed over the period during which terms the beneficiary earns the full right to exercise
the options {(vesting period}. The total cost of the options is initially measured based on
their fair value at the grant date calculated by the Black-Scholes option pricing model,
taking into account the terms and conditions established in each share option plan. At
each subsequent reporting date, the Company revises its estimate of fair value and the
number of options it expects to vest, booking any change in the liability through the
income statement for the period, if appropriate. For 2006, the financial impact on the
Company is, however, immaterial.
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For the equity-settied share option plan, fair value at the grant date is measured using the
binomial methodology. These plans are expensed during the vesting period with a credit to
equity. At each subsequent reporting date, the Company revises its estimate of the number
of options it expects to be exercised, with a corresponding adjustment to equity. As the
plan will be settled by a physical delivery of equity instruments of the parent, Telefdnica,
S.A., to the employees, the personnel expense accrued is recognised against equity.
For 2006, the financial impact on the Company is, however, immaterial.

P Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Where the
Company expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Q Revenue recognition

Revenue, shown net of Value Added Tax and any discounts, and after eliminating sales
within the Company, comprises goods sold and services provided. Revenues are measured
at their fair value of the consideration received or receivable. The amount of revenue is
recognised if it can be measured reliably and it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the Company. If necessary, revenue is split into
separately identifiable components.

The Company offers customers free minutes for selected price based on chosen customer
plan. Free unused minutes at the end of the month might be rolled over to the following
month. The Company is not obliged to reimburse the customer for unused minutes and
the option of rolling over any unused minutes is valid for only one month.

The Company recognises revenue for free minutes in the period when the related services
is provided and consumed, if material. Any rollover minutes are deferred and recognised
when the minutes are used or the option expires.

In assessing whether revenue should be recognised gross, i.e. with separate disclosure
of costs to arrive at gross profit, or on a net basis, the Company considers these indicators
of gross revenue reporting:

- The Company is the primary obligor in the arrangement,

- The Company has general inventory risk,

- The Company has price latitude,

- The Company changes the product or performs part of the service,

- The Company has discretion in supplier selection,

- The Company is involved in the determination of product or service specifications,
- The Company has credit risk,
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- The Company has the ability to set the terms of the transaction,
- The Company has the managerial control over the transaction.

The relative strength of each indicator is considered when concluding which accounting
treatment to use for principal/agency arrangement.

If a transaction is considered to meet conditions of an agency arrangement, the revenue is
recognised only at the amount of the commission received/realised, e.g. premium rate
lines.

Revenue from fixed price construction contracts (long-term contracts) is recognised
on the percentage of completion method, measured by reference to the percentage of
actual cost incurred to date to estimated total costs of the contract. An expected loss on
the construction contract is recognised as an expense immediately, when it is probable that
total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue.

The Company offers products, which may include deliverables such as a handset, activation
and airtime. These are then defined as arrangements with multiple deliverables. The
arrangement consideration is allocated to each deliverable, based on its fair value. Revenue
allocated to the identified deliverables in each revenue arrangement is recognized based on
the same recognition criteria of the individual deliverables at the time the product or
service is delivered.

(1) Fixed line telephony revenues
Revenue is recognized as follows:

Domestic and international call revenues

Domestic and international call revenues are recognised in the income statement
at the time the call is made.

Subscription revenues

Revenue from subscriptions is recognised in the income statement in the period
in which the services are rendered.

Revenues from sales of prepaid cards

Prepaid call card sales are deferred until the customer uses the stored value
on the card to pay for the relevant calls. The expiry date for prepaid cards is not
longer than 36 months.

Connection fees

Connection fees, arising from the connection of the customers to the Company’s
network, are deferred and recognised in the income statement over the estimated
average customer relationship period on the basis of degressive accounting
method.
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Equipment sales and other sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of telephone equipment and accessories and other sale of
goods is recognised at the time of sale i.e. when the Company has transferred to
the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods.

Local loop unbundling

Revenue from access to the local loop unbundling is deferred in the income
statement and recognised in the period in which the service is rendered. Regular
monthly fee is recognised on the straight line basis in the period when the service
is consumed. Revenue from the preparation of the space (collocation) for an
alternative operator is recognized upfront in the income statement when it occurs.

(2) Mobile telephony revenues

The Company earns mobile services revenue from customers usage of
the Company’s network, interconnection and roaming — collectively, “Mobile
service revenue”. The Company also earns revénue from the sale of mobile
telephone equipment and accessories as well as from activation fees,

Airtime revenues

Postpaid customers are billed monthly in arrears for airtime revenues. Revenue
from post-paid customers is accrued as their airtime and other services are used.
Prepaid customers recharge a credit, which entitles them to a certain value of
airtime and other services. Revenue from prepaid customers is deferred and
recognized as the airtime and other services are used. Upon termination of the
customer contract or expiration of voucher (up to 24 months), all deferred revenue
for unused airtime is recognized in income.

Both, post-paid and prepaid products may include deliverables such as a handset,
activation and airtime and that are defined as arrangements with multiple
deliverables. The arrangement consideration is allocated to each deliverable, based
on its fair value. Revenue allocated to the identified deliverables in each revenue
arrangement is recognized based on the same recognition criteria of the individuat
deliverables at the time the product or service is delivered.

Fquipment sales and mobile services

Monthly service revenues and revenues from handset sales are recognized
as revenue when the product or service is delivered to the distributor or to the end
customer. Resulting losses from sale of handsets at a discount are recognised
at the date of sale.
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(3)

{4)

(5)

(6)

Roaming revenues

Mobile segment derives roaming revenue as a result of airtime and other services
used by the mobile segment's customers roaming on partners’ networks in other
countries and vice versa. Amounts receivable from and payable to roaming
partners are netted and settled net on a regular basis.

Costs

Commissions and discounts directly related to the sale of equipment, SIM cards
and activations are netted against revenue in the period the product is sold to
the dealer, distributor or the end customer. Other commission payments to dealers
for activations, various marketing promotions and other activities are included in
the costs of sales for the period. |

Interconnect revenues

Interconnect revenues are derived from calls and other traffic that originate in
other domestic and foreign operators’ network but use the Company’s network.
These revenues are recognised in the income statement at the time when the call
is received in the Company’s network. The Company pays a proportion of the call
revenue it collects from its customers to other domestic and foreign operators’ for
calls and other traffic that originate in the Company’'s network but use other
domestic and foreign operators’ network. Amounts receivable from and payable to
other domestic and foreign operators are netted and settled net on a regular basis.

internet and data services

The Company earns revenue from providing Internet services. Revenue from such
services is recognised at the time the service is provided.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.

Interest

Revenue is recognised as interest accrues (using the effective interest method).

R Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognized as a liability
in the Company’s financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved
by the Company's shareholders.
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S Financial instruments

Financial instruments carried on the balance sheet include cash and bank balances,
investments, receivables, payables, borrowings and derivatives.

Financial risk management

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including the effects of
changes in debt market prices, foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates.
The Company’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the financial
performance of the Company. The Company uses derivative financial instruments such as
forward foreign exchange contracts, currency swaps, interest rate swaps, forward rate
agreements and currency options to hedge certain exposures.

The Company does not conduct any speculative trading activities.

Risk management is carried out by the treasury department under approved policies.
The Board provides written principles for overall risk management. In line with these
principles, policies exist for specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk,
credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and investing excess liquidity.

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to the Euro and US Dollar. The treasury department is
responsible for hedging the net position in each currency by using currency borrowings,
external forward foreign exchange contracts, currency swaps and currency options.

The Company primarily hedges the foreign currency exposure of its contract
commitments to purchase network technology and other operating expenses from
European Union countries. The forward contracts used in its program mature
in 6 months ar less, consistent with the related purchase commitments.

Additionally, the Company hedges the foreign currency exposure of its borrowings
in foreign currencies. The Company's objective in managing its exposure to foreign
currency fluctuations is to minimize earnings and cash flow volatility associated with
foreign exchange rate changes. The exchange rate derivatives (including forward foreign
exchange contracts, currency swaps and currency options) are designed to match
anticipated foreign currency transactions (interest rate payments or principal payments).

(i) Interest rate risk
The Company's income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of

changes in market interest rates. The Company sometimes borrows at variable rates and
uses interest rate swaps and forward rate agreements as cash flow hedges of future
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interest payments, which have the economic effect of converting borrowings from
floating rates to fixed rates. The interest rate swaps and forward rate agreements allow
the Company to raise long-term borrowings at floating rates and swap them into fixed
rates. Under the interest rate swaps, the Company agrees with other parties to
exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between fixed contract rates and floating
rate interest amounts calculated by reference to the agreed notional principal amounts.

(i) Credit risk

Concentrations of credit risk, with respect to trade accounts receivable, are limited due
to the large number of customers. However, substantially all trade receivables are
concentrated within the Czech Republic. Although the Company does not currently
foresee higher credit risk associated with these receivables, repayment is significantly
impacted by the financial stability of the national economy.

Derivative counterparties and cash transactions are limited to high credit quality financial
institutions. The Company has policies that limit the amount of credit exposure
to any one financial institution.

(iv) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities, the availability of funding through an adeqguate amount of money market
(committed and uncommitted) credit facilities and the ability to close out market
positions. The treasury department aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping
money market credit lines available.

Accounting for derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised in the balance sheet at cost and
subsequently are re-measured at their fair value. The method of recognising the resulting
gain or loss is dependent on the nature of the item being hedged. On the date a derivative
contract is entered into, the Company designates certain derivatives as either

(1) a hedge of the fair value of a recognised asset or liability (fair value hedge), or

(2) a hedge of a forecasted transaction or of a firm commitment (cash flow hedge).

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges
and that are highly effective are recorded in the .income statement, along with changes
in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that is attributable to the hedged risk.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges
and that are highly effective are recognised in equity. Where the forecasted transaction or
firm commitment results in the recognition of an asset ar of a liability, the gains and losses
previously deferred in equity are transferred from equity and included in the initial
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measurement of the cost of the asset or liability. Otherwise, amounts deferred in equity are
transferred to the income statement and classified as revenue or expense in the same
periods during which the hedged firm commitment or forecasted transaction affects the
income statement.

Certain derivative transactions, while providing effective economic hedges under the
Company's risk management policies, either do not qualify for hedge accounting under the
specific rules in IAS 39 or the Company has elected not to apply the specific IAS 39 hedge
accounting provisions. Changes in the fair value of such derivative instruments that do not
qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in the income statement.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the
criteria for hedge accounting under IAS 39, any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at
that time remains in equity and is recognised when the committed or forecasted
transaction ultimately is recognised in the income statement. However, if a committed or
forecasted transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was
reported in equity is immediately transferred to the income.statement.

The Company documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between
hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and
strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. This process includes linking all
derivatives designated as hedges to specific assets and liabilities or to specific firm
commitments or forecast transactions. The Company also documents its assessment, both
at the hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, whether the derivatives that are used in
hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows
of hedged items.

The fair values of various derivative instruments used for hedging purposes are disclosed
in Note 20. Movements on the hedging reserve in shareholder's equity are shown in
Note 25.

Fair value estimation

Except for currency options, the fair values of the derivative financial instruments reflect
estimates based on calculations performed using the Company’s own discounted cash flow
models (using market rates). The fair value of currency options is based on information
obtained from external parties, including the Company’s bankers.

T Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.
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Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The estimates and assumptions that might have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next year are
discussed below:

(1) Income taxes and deferred taxes

The Company created a provision for current income taxes and in consideration of the
temporary differences also for deferred tax. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business and the measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects to
recover or settle the carrying amount of assets and liabilities. Where the final tax-
deductible expenses are different from the amounts that were calculated, such differences
will impact the current income and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made. The total amount of provision for current income taxes is CZK
3,687 million, advances paid for income taxes amount to CZK 2,959 million and the net
deferred tax liability is CZK 4,494 million.

(2} Goodwill

The Company tests at each reporting date goodwill for an impairment. However goodwill
does not generate cash flows independently of other assets or groups of assets and the
assessment of its carrying value is significantly impacted by the management’s assessment
of the performance and expected future performance of the operation to which the
goodwill relates. From 1 January 2005 the Company implemented IFRS 3 and accordingly
ceased to amortize the goodwill. In accordance with the requirement of IAS 36, goodwill is
tested annually for its recoverable amount, as well as when there are indications of
impairment. The carrying amount of goodwill is CZK 13,320 million.

(3) Provisions and contingent liabilities

As set out in Note 21 the Company is a participant in several lawsuits and administrative
proceedings including those related to its pricing policies. The Company's treatment
of obligations with uncertain timing and amount depends on the management’s estimation
of the amount and timing of the obligation and probability of an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits that will be required to settle the obligation (both legal or
constructive). A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a
result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Contingent
liabilities are not recognised because their existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Company. Contingent liabilities are assessed continually to determine whether
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an outflow of resource embodying economic benefits has become probable. If it becomes
probable that an outflow of future economic benefits will be required for an item previously
dealt with as a contingent liability, a provision is recognised in the financial statements of the
period in which the change in probability occurs. '

(4) Interconnect

The Company provides and enters into the contracts for interconnect services and the
revenue is recognised on the basis of the reasonable estimation of expected amount. Such
estimation is regularly reviewed, however the final agreement and invoicing can be with
some operators stated on up to a yearly basis.

(5)° Impairment of the fixed line business assets

The Company makes an assessment at each balance sheet date whether there is any
indication that an impairment loss recognised for the fixed line business assets in prior
years may no longer exist, may have decreased or may have increased. If any such
indication exists, the Company estimates a recoverable amount of the assets and compares
to the carrying value (net of the impairment allowance). In assessing whether there is any
indication that the impairment loss recognised in the past may not longer exist, may have
decreased or may have increased, the Company considers both external and internal
indicators (declination of asset’s market value, changes expected in the market, including
technological changes etc.). Where an estimate of recoverable amount is performed, this
involves the use for a number of management assumptions about future business
performance, which may, ultimately, differ from reality.

Based on the assessment performed by the Company, no increase or decrease of the
previously recognised impairment of fixed line business assets was recognised in 2006.

U Investments in subsidiary and associated undertakings

A subsidiary is an enterprise that is controlled by the Company, which means that the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

An associated undertaking is an enterprise where the Company has significant influence,
which is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions, but not
exercise control.

Equity investments in subsidiaries and associates are recorded at cost less a allowance for
diminution in value.

No consolidation of subsidiaries or associates has been performed as these financial
statements are presented on a stand-alone basis. In accordance with the requirements
of the Act on Accounting, the Company prepares consolidated financial statements
in accordance with IFRS.
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V Change in accounting policy
~Connection fees and related costs — 2005 change

During 2005, the Company changed its accounting policy for revenue recognition of the
connection fees relating to the activation of the fixed line for all periods starting from
1 January 1996. Retrospective application of the new accounting policy for the periods
before 1996 was impracticable because appropriately detailed information for these
periods is not available. In previous periods, the Company had recognised such revenue in
full in the income statement upon connection of the customers to the network. Since
2005, the Company has decided to defer these revenues over the estimated average
customer relationship period and the management also judges that the new policy is
preferable, gives more relevant information about the effects on transactions and will be
consistent with the telecommunication industry practice. Such policy is also in accordance
with the Telefdnica Group policy.

Connection fees are deferred and recognised in the income statement over the estimated
average customer relationship period on the basis of the degressive accounting method.
For the periods starting 2006, the Company estimates the customer relationship period
being 12 years (13 years as at 1 January 2005).

Together with the above-mentioned retrospective change in accounting policy for
connection fees the Company identified associated connection costs that met the
definition of subsequent costs increasing the carrying value of property, plant and
equipment but were originally expensed by the Company. In 2005 the Company decided
to retrospectively capitalise these costs as property, plant and equipment. The retrospective
capitalization resulted in the increase in carrying amount of fixed assets and associated
depreciation with the effect on opening 2004 and subsequent balances.

No substantial changes in accounting policies have been applied in 2006.

“Under IFRS, the transfer of assets and liabilities transaction between the Company and the
former Eurotel was considered to fall under the category of a common control transaction.
The merger has been accounted for by using the pooling of interest method. As such the
2005 comparative information has been restated to reflect the position had the merger
taken effect from 1 January 2005.

W 2005 Comparative figures

The transfer of assets and liabilities was reflected accordingly in the opening balances as at
1 January 2006 {an opening balance sheet was prepared as at 1 January 2006 that
constituted an aggregation of balance sheet amounts after elimination of intercompany
transactions between the Company and former Furotel). Certain balances in the opening
balance sheet prepared as at 1 January 2006 required additional adjustments, because

the transfer of assets and liabilities changed the tax position of former Eurotel.
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These adjustments resulted in an increase of the current income tax liability by CZK
465 million, decrease of deferred tax liability by CZK 297 million and decrease of equity by
CZK 168 million.

in order to ensure figure comparativeness with previous period, the comparative
information for 2005 has been restated and conform with the information from the
opening balance sheet prepared as at 1 January 2006.

X Integration process

The integration process continues intemnally and as well externally through the
implementation of ongoing integration projects. These include mainly sales channels and
customer care integration, regional network operations integration, alignment of
controlling, budget and reporting processes and cultural alignment,

At the same time the Company takes advantage of the global experience and close
interaction with Telefénica, S.A., Telefénica 02 Europe plc and other Telefonica Group
operating companies. The main activities continue to focus on the introduction and
marketing of new services and products in both fixed and mobile segments, new
convergent products, further operational efficiencies facilitated by a new organizational
structure and synergies leading to revenue growth and OpEx and CapEx savings. The
Company will monitor the development of the business in order to find out whether the
currently used segments (fixed lines and mobile segment) are still relevant.

(1) Gamma building

In 2006, the Company entered into an agreement to lease the Gamma Building to become
the Company's headquarter from 2Q 2007. Moving the Company's headquarters will
allow for the full physical integration of employees in one area during the ongoing
integration process.

(2) Re-branding

The Company presents its services under the 02 brand. This replaced two original brands,
CESKY TELECOM and Eurotel, on 1 September 2006. The company uses the 02 brand for
all products in the fixed as well as the mobile networks.

The change of the corporate identity to O2 involved several areas, from re-branding of
thousands of payphones, vehicles, the exteriors and interiors of buildings, and employee
uniforms and identification cards to, for instance, logos on the displays of mobile
telephones. '

The new 02 brand is being presented to the public by means of a classic marketing mix,
including print and internet advertisements, billboards, and television spots inciuding afso
non-traditional forms of communication, e.g. offering a download of a song from Leftfield
that the Company is using in its TV campaign introducing the O2 brand.
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in order to further improve customer care, an effort to simplify and clarify customers'
communication with the firm is being made. Unified 02 shops, one telephone contact to
the firm, one internet address were introduced to achieve this.

Together with the brand, the Company also launched new services. As a first new product,
television through fixed lines O2TV with its rich functionalities was introduced. Next offer,
brand new mobile tariff programs, proved the Company's plan to be as transparent as
possible. The Company’s intention to provide convergent products started with combining
services in the fixed and mobile networks in a way that allows for savings.

Y Operating profit

Operating profit is defined as profit before financial results and taxes and represents profit
from the business operations. Financial results consist of interest income, interest expense,
other financial expense (which include primarily bank charges), fair value losses and gains
on financial instruments and realized and unrealized exchange rate differences.
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1 Segment information

The Company comprises two main business segments, as follows:

e Fixed Network communications services using a fixed network provided by
former CESKY TELECOM, a.s.
e Mobile  Mobile communications services provided by former Eurotel.

Revenue of the Company is predominantly derived from domestic trading activities and as
a result, segment reporting is only shown on the basis of business segments. With respect
to the transfer of assets and iiabilities (as detailed in General Information paragraph} and
the deep integration process, the Company will analyse criteria for segment identification,
which might lead to a change in the reported segments in the future years.

Year ended 31 December 2006

Fixed _Mobile Company

Revenues 30,891 31,733 62,624
Intar-segment sales (521) (796) (1,317)
Total revenues 30,370 30,937 £1,307
Gains from sale of non-current assets 96 2 98
Work performed by the Company and capitalized 694 185 879
Costs (17,988) {17,283) (35,271
Inter-segment purchases 796 521 1,317
Total costs {17,192) (16,762) (33,954)
impairment charge (253) - (253)
Depreciation (9,793) (4,225) (14,018)
Amortisation (930) (1.718) (2,708)
Total depreciation and amaortization (10,783) {(5,943) (16,726)
Operating profit 2,932 8,419 11,351
Interest and other financial income (net) {257
Profit before tax 11,094
Tax (2.772)
Net profit 8,322
Assets (excluding Goodwill and non-current assets

held for sale) 65,412 38,862 104,274
Goodwill on purchase of additional ownership

interest in former Eurotel - 13,320 13,320
Non-current assets held for sale 203 - 203
Total assets 1 52,182 117,797
Trade and other payables {5,569) (5,351} {10,920)
Other labilities (15,714) 2,548 18.262
Total liabilities (21,283) (7,899) 25,182)
Capital expenditure 3,149 3,170 5,319
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Year ended 31 December 2005 Fixed Mobile _Company
Revenues 32,275 30,029 62,304
Inter-segment sales {415) {852} {1.267)
Total revenues 31,860 29177 61,037
Gains from sale of non-current assets 116 - 116
Work performed by the Company and capitalized 361 228 589
Costs (17,896) {16,642) {34,538)
Inter-segment purchases 852 415 1.267
Total costs {17.044) (16,227) (33,271)
Impairment charge (465) (796) (1,261)
Depreciation (10,686) (4,325) {15,011)
Amortisation (1.837) 941 {2,778)
Total depreciation and amortizaticn {(12,523) (5,266) (17,789)
Operating profit 2,305 7,116 3,421
Interest and other financial income (net) (654)
Profit before tax 8,767
Tax 2,665
Net profit 6,102

Assets {excluding Goodwill and non-current assets
‘held for sale} 78,635 32,308 110,943
Goodwill on purchase of additional ownership

interest in former Eurotel - 13,320 13,320
Non-current assets held for sale 360 - 360
Total assets 78,995 45,6728 124,623
Trade and other payables {4,918) {5,263) {10,181
Other liabilities (16,868) (2,774 {19.642)
Total liabilities (21,786) (8,.037) (29,823}
Capital expenditure 2,249 3,814 6,063

Inter-segment pricing between the mobile and the fixed segment is based on rates agreed
upon between former CESKY TELECOM, a.s. and former Eurotel, or based on a decision
of the Czech Telecommunication Office (Cesky telekomunikaéni Ufad). The rates applied
in 2006 and 2005 were determined on the same basis as rates applicable for other mobile
operators and are consistent with rates applied for pricing with other mobile operators.
With respect to the transfer of assets and liabilities, the 2001 price amendment to an
agreement governing interconnect arrangements with former Eurotel became irrelevant in
2006. After the transfer of assets and liabilities as of 1 July 2006, all inter-company
transactions between fixed (former CESKY TELECOM, a.s.) and mobile (former Eurotel)
segments became intra-company (inter-segments).

Capital expenditures comprise additions to property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets.
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2 Revenue and Internal expenses capitalized in fixed assets

Revenue Year ended
31 December 2006 31 December 2005

Voice 23,463 23,839
Interconnection 9,444 9,154
Subscription charges 9,841 10,542
Connection charges 669 702
SMS & MMS & Value Added Services 4,813 4,537
Leased lines 2,330 2,615
Data services 1,839 1,732
internet 5,051 4,422
iT and business solutions : 740 346
Equipment and Activation Fee 2,163 2,352
Other Telco Revenues _ 511 479
Other revenues : 443 317
Total revenues 61,307 61037

Revenues from related parties are disclosed in Note 27.

The aggregate future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
relating to the buildings and other telecommunication equipment are as follows:

31 December 2006

No later than 1 year 229
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 835
Later than 5 years 203
Total 1.267
Internal expenses capitalized in fixed assets Year ended

31 December 2006 31 December 2005

Material 593 338
Labour 286 251
Total 879 589
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3 Operating expenses

The following items have been included to arrive at operating profit:

Year ended
31 December 2006 31 December 2005

Wages and salaries* 4,861 5,403
Redundancy payments 247 270
Social security contributions (Note 18) 1,632 1,822
Staff welfare costs 283 301
Total staff costs 7,023 7,796
Intercaonnection and reaming 10,010 9,701
Cost of goods scld 3,057 3,506
Other cost of sales ' 1,255 941
Other purchases 1,195 942
Marketing and sales 3,114 2,610
Call centers 93 -
Network & IT repairs and maintenance 2,620 2,408
Rentals, buildings and vehicles 1,646 1,598
Utilities supplies 746 604
Consultancy and professional fees 347 434
Other external services 1,675 1,748
Impairment charge for bad and doubtful debts

and inventories 714 414
Taxes (other than income tax} 398 507
QOther operating expenses 61 62
Total operating expenses 33,954 33,271

*Certain Company employees (including the Board of Directors) with specialised know how, or who have
access to business secrets, or who are considered important to the development of the business, are bound
by non-competition restrictions, for a maximum period of 12 months from the date of termination of their
employment with the Company. The Company paid CZK 6 millien in relation to such non- competmon
clauses in 2006 (2005: CZK 40 millicn).

Purchases from related parties are disclosed in Note 27.
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4 Interest and other finance income (net)

Interest expense
Interest incurred on loans and bonds

Interest income

Interest expense (net)

Other finance charges/(gains)

Fair value losses/{gains) on financial instruments:

Derivative financial instruments
Net foreign exchange transaction gains

Other finance income (net)

Net finance costs

5 Tax

Total income tax expense is made up of:
Current income tax charge
Deferred income tax credit (Note 17)

Taxes on income

Year ended

31 December 2006

31 December 2005

431 748
(148) (47)
283 701
(4) 189
29 {119)
_(51) (1A
_{26) 47)
257 654
Year ended

31 December 2006

3,700
528

2,772

31 December 2005

3,280
(&15)

2,665

The tax on the Company's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would
arise using the basic tax rate of the home country of the Company as follows:

Profit before tax

Income tax charge calculated at the statutory rate of 24%

{2005; 26%)

Income not subjected to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Other

Investments allowances

‘Taxes on income

Effective tax rate

Year ended

31 December 2006

31 December 2005

11,094

2,663
1
223

8,767

2,279
(65)

571
(112)
(@&

2,665
30%
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6 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable
to shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Year ended
31 December 2006 31 December 2005

Weighted number of ordinary shares in issue 322,089,900 322,089,900

Net profit attributable to shareholders (in CZK million) 8,322 6,102
Basic earnings per share (CZK) 26 19

There is no dilution of earnings as no convertible instruments have been issued by the Company.
7 Dividends

2006 2005
Dividends (including withholding tax) 14,494 -

Dividends include withholding tax on dividends paid by the Company to its shareholders.
There has been no interim dividend paid in respect of 2006. Approval of the 2006 profit
and the decision regarding the amount of any dividend payment for the 2006 financial year
will take place at the Annual General Shareholders Meeting scheduled for 26 April 2007.

8 Property, plant and equipment

Communication

Ducts, cables  exchanges and

Land and and related related  Qther fixed Capital work

buildings plant equipment assets _ in progress Total
Year ended 31 December 2006
Opening net book amaunt 14,494 47,141 22,355 1,971 2,012 87,973
Additions 615 464 2,978 841 4,882 9,780
Disposals and other movements (4) (4 16 9 (4,874) (4,857)
Assets classified as held for sale 54 - ‘ - 1 - 55
Depreciation charge (739) (4,201) (8,061} (1,017} - (14,018}
Impairmeant charge (201 5 (5 (2) (34) (2473
Closing net book amount 14,21 43,395 17,283 1,803 1,986 £8.686
At 31 December 2006
Cost 22,486 99,329 92,253 10,692 2,035 226,795
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment allowance {(8.267) (55,934) (74,970) (8,889 (49) (148,109)

Net book amount 4,21 43,395 17,2 1,803 1986 18,686
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Ducts, cables

Communication

exchanges and

Land and and related related
buildings plant equipment
Year ended 31 December 2005
Opening net book amount 15,665 50,745 28,610
Additions 361 633 2,761
Disposals and other mavements (117} 2 (129)
Assets classified as held for sale (358) - (1)
Depreciation charge (750) (4,203) (8,785)
Impairment charge {307) (36) __ (161
Closing net book amount 14,494 47 141 22,355
At 31 December 2005
Cost ' 22,204 99,201 90,879
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment allowance (7.710) (52,060 (68,524)
Net book amount 14,4 47,141 22.355

47
Other fixed Capital work

~_assets in progress Total
2,691 1,594 99,305
570 4,736 g,061
(15) (4,301) (4,560)

{1} - {360)
(1,273) - (15,011}
_ _ {7 462
1,971 2012 87,873
10,652 2,022 224,958
{8.681) 10y (136,985)
1241 2.012 87,973

As at 31 December 2006, the carrying value of non-depreciated assets amounted to CZK

460 million.

Land and buildings, plant and equipment with a ‘carrying value of CZK 21 million
(2005: CZK 1,220 million) were pledged as collateral for CZK 5,300 million of provided
borrowings. The borrowings were fully paid off in 2005, but the cancellation of the pledge

is still in process (see Note 16).

No borrowing costs were capitalized during the years 2006 and 2005.
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The Company reports and classifies the following assets held for sale at the balance sheet
date:

-

Communication

exchanges and

Land and related Other fixed

buildings equipment assets Total
Year ended 31 December 2006
Opening net book amocunt 358 1 1 360
Disposals and other movements ‘ (96) - - (96)
Impairment charge {6) - - {6)
Assets re-classified as held for sale {54) _ - (1) (55)
Closing net book amount 202 1 - 203
At 31 December 2006
Cost 04 190 7 1,101
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment allowance 702 (189) @ 898
Net book amount 202 1 - _203
Year ended 31 December 2005
Opening net hook amount - - - -
Assets re-classified as held for sale 358 1 _1 360
Closing net book amount 358 A _1 360
At 31 December 2005
Cost 769 5 7 781
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment allowance 411 _{4) _(6) 421
Net book amount _358 1 _1 360

Assets intended for sale in most cases represent administration buildings with land, that
became vacant due to the optimization of the Company’s processes and which the Company
will not use in the future and it is expected their sale will take place within one year.

The non-current assets classified as held for sale are presented in the fixed segment.

As at 31 December 2006, the total recognised loss from the impairment / decrease in value
of assets classified as held for sale was CZK 41 million. With regard to assets for which a
loss from decrease in value was recognised, no cancellation/reverse of the previously
recognised impairment occurred. ‘

Cost of fully depreciated property, plant and equipment was CZK 47,049 million as at
31 December 2006.
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In 2006, the Company achieved a total gain from the sale of the Group assets amounting
to CZK 98 million and total losses in amount CZK 61 million. The total net sales were
CZK 205 million and the carrying amount was CZK 168 million.

The impairment charge recorded in 2006 represents mainly correction of value of special
constructions, which were idle.

9 Intangible assets
Goodwill Licences Software Other Total
Year ended 31 December 2006
Opening net book amount 13,320 5,494 3,405 627 22,846
Additions - - 1,384 - 1,384
Dispcsals and other movements - - {(14) - (14)
Amortisation charge - (404) (1,677 (627} (2,708)
Impairment charge - - - - - -
Closing net book amount 13,320 5,090 3.008 - 21,508
At 31 December 2006
Cost 13,320 6,073 21,931 2,829 44,153
Accumulated amortisation
and impairment allowance - 983 {18,833) {(2.829) (22.645)
Net book amount 13,320 =090 3,098 - 21,508
Year ended 31 December 2005
Opening net book ameunt 13,320 5,668 4,318 1,702 25,008
Additions - - 1.416 - 1,416
Disposals and other movements - - (1} - (n
Amortisation charge . - (174) (2,315) (289) {2,778)
Impairment charge - - {13) (786) 799
Closing net book amount 13.320 5,494 3,405 627 22,846
At 31 December 2005
Cost 13,320 6,073 21,225 2,829 43,447
Accumulated amortisation and
impairment allowance - 579 (17,820) {2,202) (20,601}
Net book amount 13,3290 5.494 3,405 627 22,846

Details regarding the impairment loss that was recorded in 2005 are described in Note 10.
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Acquired licences are represented by rights to operate the UMTS, GSM and NMT cellular
networks. The original 450 MHz and GSM operating licenses were granted for a period of
twenty years from the signing of the agreement for the original 450 MHz license in 1991
and from the granting of the GSM license in 1996 for use of the 900 spectrum. In 1999,
former Eurotel acquired an additional GSM 1800 spectrum under its existing GSM license.
In 2002, the GSM license to both spectrums was renewed and is currently valid for the
remaining period of ten years. Carrying value of GSM 900 license is as at 31 December
2006 CZK 695 million (2005: CZK 770 million) and carrying value of GSM 1800 license is
CZK 559 million (2005: CZK 620 million). In 2002, former Eurotel renewed its 450 MHz
license; the current license enables the mobile segment to offer any internationally
recognized public mobile telecommunication services on frequency of 450 MHz. Mobile
segment currently provides on this frequency voice services under NMT standard and
broadband Internet access services using COMA technology. The license is currently valid
for the remaining period of five years. Carrying value of NMT 450 license is CZK 65 million
(2005: CZK 81 million). In December 2001, former Eurotel acquired the UMTS license,
which has been granted for a period of twenty years. Under the license, former Eurotel
was provided with deferred payment terms by the Czech Telecommunication Office
("CTU") to finance the license acquisition. In December 2003, former Eurotel signed an
amendment to its original UMTS license agreement, by which the original launch of the
service was extended by one year. According to the terms of this new amendment, former
Eurotel agreed to pay the UMTS obligation in full during 2004 in exchange for
a forgiveness of 2003 and 2004 interest on the deferred payments provided as part of the
UMTS license agreement. Carrying value of UMTS license is CZK 3,771 million (2005: CZK
4,023 million). UMTS license was put into commercial use on 1 December 2005 when it
also started to be amortized.

No borrowing costs were capitalized during the years 2006 and 2005.
Cost of fully amortised intangible assets was CZK 13,569 million as at 31 December 2006.

The caption “Other” includes brand names acquired through business combination in
2003 by the purchase of the remaining share in former Eurotel. These intangible assets
were originally determined as having an indefinite useful life after adoption of revised
IAS 38 from 1 January 2005, because there was no foreseeable limit to the period over
which the asset was expected to generate net cash flows. After the acquisition by
Telefénica, S.A. the Company reassessed its intangible assets previously acquired through
business combination and reviewed the relating useful lives. The Company decided, as a
result of this assessment, to change the useful lives of brand names with indefinite useful
lives from indefinite to finite. This change was accounted for as a change in an accounting
estimate and the revised useful lives were determined to be 30 months. From 1 July 2005,
the date of change in indefinite useful life, the Company amortizes these brand names
using the straight-line method. Upon the transfer of assets and liabilities and with respect
to the re-branding process, the Company re-considered an estimate of useful life of former
Eurotel related brand names and accelerated their amortization with final effect of their full
amortization as at 31 December 2006.
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All of the Company’s intangible assets with finite lives are amortised and are subject
to an annual review of impairment indicators and revision of useful life.

10  Impairment of fixed assets
Intangible assets

Brand names acquired through_business combination in 2003 with former Furotel

During the process of allocation of the cost of a business combination arising from the
acquisition by Telefénica, S.A., the Company tested the recoverable amounts of previously
acquired brand names. Considering that result the Company recognised immediately
an impairment loss in the income statement in the amount of CZK 786 million in 2005 (see
Note 9).

As at 30 June 2005 the carrying amount of brand names before the impairment charge
was CZK 1,567 million (CZK 1,567 million as at 31 December 2004). Upon the transfer
of assets and liabilities and with respect to the re-branding process, the Company
re-considered an estimate of useful life of former Eurotel related brand names
and accelerated their amortization with final effect of their full amortization as
at 31 December 2006, '

Fixed assets of the fixed line segment

During 2003, external factors relating to the telecommunication market and regulatory
environment namely uncertainty regarding tariff rebalancing, termination charges for
internet dial-up interconnection charges and other regulatory decisions in the Czech
Republic led the management to assess the recoverable amount of the fixed line segment
assets. The fixed line segment assets constitute one cash-generating unit (the “CGU"}.

As at 31 December 2006, the management of the Company reviewed the indicators which
would indicate that the impairment allowance of fixed line business assets made in 2003 is
no longer relevant and should be reversed. Upon the review, a recoverable amount of the
fixed line business assets (impairment test model) was estimated. Based on this assessment
performed, the management believes that the value of the existing fixed network assets is
fairly stated and does not differ substantially from the assets’ recoverable amount as at
31 December 2006.
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11 Inventories

31 December 2006 31 December 2005

Construction material 81 35
Cables 28 159
Other inventory including goods for resale 0642 522
Finished products and work in progress 236 -

287 116

The inventories noted above are stated net of an allowance of CZK 179 million (2005:
CZK 187 million), reducing the value of the inventories to their net realisable value. The
total carrying amount of inventories carried at net realisable value amounts to
CZK 9 million (2005: CZK 47 million). The amount of inventories recognised as an expense
is CZK 4,197 million (2005: CZK 4,631 million).

12  Receivables and prepayments

31 December 2006 31 December 2005

Domestic trade receivables (net) 6,149 6,804
Foreign currency trade receivables (net) 710 620
Other debtors (net) 873 437
Prepayments ' 671 701
Other financial assets - short-term _ 176 17

8,579 8,279

Trade receivables are stated net of an allowance for impaired receivables of CZK
3,605 million (2005: CZK 3,218 million). In order to preserve the tax-deductible status of
the bad debt expense, the Company’s trade receivables are not written off and removed
from the primary books and records until certain statutory collection requirements have
been satisfied.

Receivables from related parties are disclosed in Note 27.

The Company’s historical experience regarding the collection of accounts receivable
is consistent with the recorded allowances. Due to these factors, the management believes
that no additional credit risk beyond the amounts provided for is inherent in
the Company’s trade receivables.
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As at 31 December 2006 and 2005 the Company has the following non-current balances,
which are classified as other financial assets:

31 December 2006 31 December 2005

Long-term credits A 156 185
Advance payments for long-term expenses 220 227
Total 376 412

Long-term trade credits include interest bearing credit (interest 5.9%) amounting to CZK
78 million (2005: CZK 83 million).

13  Available-for-sale and held-to-maturity investments

Available-for-sale investments 2006 2005
At beginning of year 58 176
Revaluation deficit {2) (1
Additions 3 4
Disposals 3 121
At end of year 26 28
Non-current - 58
Current 56 -
Total 56 58
Held-to-maturity investments 2006 2005
At beginning of year | 29 109
Exchange differences ‘ (n (2)
Revaluation deficit - -
Additions 1 1
Matured ) 9)
At end of year 27 _29
Non-current 27 29
Current — =
Total 27 29

Available-for-sale investments, principally comprising marketable securities, are fair valued
monthly and at the balance sheet date. For investments traded in active markets, the fair
value is determined by reference to quoted bid prices. For other investments, the fair value
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is estimated by reference to the current market value of similar instruments or by reference
to the discounted cash flows of the underlying net assets.

Held to maturity investments category comprise a debt instrument — a bond held in EUR
with maturity date July 2008, which is carried at amortised cost.

14  Cash and cash equivalents

31 December 2006 31 December 2005

Cash balances 178 270
Intra-group cash pocling 3,605 -
Short-term bank deposits and cash eguivalents 3,515 3.30

Cash and cash equivalents 1,298 3572

As at 31 December 2006 and 2005, the Company’s cash equivalents partially consisted of
short-term bank promissory notes that were economically equivalent to bank term deposits
and interest bearing deposits maturing in three months or less.

During 2006 (since April 2006) the Company entered into mutual Telefénica Group
cash-pooling, which enables the Telefénica Group good financial governance and effective
operating free cash flow. The short-term deposits are based on the arm’s length principle
and classified as a cash equivalent.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, the year-end cash and cash equivalents
comprise the following components:

31 December 2006 31 December 2005

Cash and cash equivalents 7,298 3,572
Bank overdrafts and other short-term borrowings {Note 16) - {101

Balance at the end of period . 1,298 3,471
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15 Trade and other payables

Trade creditars in local currency {net)
Trade creditors in foreign currencies {net)
Other taxes and social security

Deferred revenue

Employee wages and benefits

VAT payable

Other creditors

Accruals

Other non-current liabilities

Payables to related parties are disclosed in Note 27.

31 December 2006

31 December 2005

-~ 4,535
638
192

2,026
554
442

70
2,463

10,920
805

4,535

Other non-current liabilities include primarily deferred revenues from connection fees, which
are expected to be taken to income in more than 12 months from the balance sheet date.

16 Financial debts

Bank toans and overdrafts in local currency (a)
Intarnaticnal financial institution loans in foreign currencies (b)
Bank loans and overdrafts in foreign currencies (a)

Bonds in local currency {)
Total borrowings

Accrued interest
Derivatives
Other financial debt

Total financial debt

Repayable:
Within one year

Between one and two years
Between two and five years
Atter five years

Total non-current

Total financial debt

31 December 2006

31 December 2005

101

3,337
5987

9,425

193
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(a)

Bank loans and overdrafts include overdrafts of CZK O million denominated in the
local currency (2005: CZK 101 million) and CZK O million in foreign currencies
(2005: CZK 0 million).

Short-term borrowings as at 31 December 2005 consisted of loans drawn under
bilateral short-term facilities.

In November 2003, the Company raised a syndicated credit facility in the total
amount of EUR 850 million equivalent, with a final maturity day on 21 November
2008. The purpose of the loan was to finance the acquisition of the remaining 48%
ownership interest in former Eurotel and general corporate purposes of the
Company. The loan was fully paid off during 2005. Therefore, as at 31 December
2006 the outstanding amount of the loans under the credit facility was EUR O
million {2005: EUR 0 million) and CZK 0 million {2005: CZK 0 million). The terms and
conditions of the credit facility agreement, inter alia, require the Company to
maintain certain gearing and interest cover ratios of earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortisation to net borrowings and interest payable.

In July 1997, the Company raised a private placement in the total amount of EUR
127.8 million with a maturity day on 30 July 2012. In October 2005, the bank loan
in foreign currency was partially repaid prior to its maturity date. The fees associated
with this earlier repayment in the amount of CZK 70.6 million were immediately
recognised in the income statement. As at 31 December 2006, the outstanding
amount of the foreign currency loan amounts to EUR 115 million.

In 2005, the International financial institution loans have been fully repaid prior to
their maturity dates. The fees associated with this earlier repayment in the total
amount of CZK 51.2 million were immediately recognised in the income statement.

In 2003, the Company issued CZK 1,000 million of bonds (as additional issue to CZK
3,000 million of bonds from 2002) with an interest rate of 4.55% p.a. The bonds in the
total amount of CZK 4,000 million were fully repaid on the maturity date in July 2005.

In 2003, the Company issued CZK 6,000 million of bonds with an interest rate
3.50% p.a. and a maturity date of 9 July 2008.

At 31 December 2006, the Company had approximately CZK 8,290 million of available
undrawn credit facilities (2005: CZK 10,224 million).

Loans with a maturity within one year and denominated in a foreign currency have a total
value of EUR O million (2005; EUR O million).

For all borrowings, interest has been charged at commercial rates.
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The Company's loan interest rate allocation after taking into account interest rate swaps
was as follows:

31 December 2006 31 December 2005

At fixed rate 9,156 9,324
At floating rate ' - 101
Total 5,156 9,425

The carrying amounts and fair values of bonds and bank loans are as follows:

31 December 2006 Carrying amounts Fair values
Bank loans 3,163 3,557
Bonds 5,993 6135
Total 9,156 9,692

The fair values of borrowings are based on discounted cash flows using a discount rate
based upon the borrowing rate that the Board of Directors expect would be available to
the Company at the balance sheet date, except for the fair value of the issued bonds,
which are based on actual bond market pricing. The carrying amounts of short-term
borrowings approximate their fair value.

Effective interest rates "~ 31December 2006 31 December 2005
Bank loans and overdrafts in local currency n/a 2.51%
International financial institution loans in foreign currencies n/a n/a
Bank loans and overdrafts in foreign currencies 6.64% 6.64%
Bonds in local currency 3.50% 3.50%

The Company meets the criteria for debt covenants (stipulated level of consolidated total net
borrowings, EBITDA and tangible net worth) required by the creditors.

International financial institution loans in foreign currencies (now repaid) have been
secured by the Czech Republic (represented by the Ministry of Finance of the Czech
Republic) and as a result, certain movables and real estates have been pledged for the
benefit of the Czech Republic (see Note 8).
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The carrying value of assets pledged is as follows:
31 December 2006 31 December 2005

~ Land and buildings - 7
Plant and equipment 21 213
Total 21 1,220

The borrowings were fully paid off in 2005, but the cancellation of the pledge is still
in a process.

Other loans are not secured.
17 Deferred income taxes

Deferred income taxes are calculated using currently enacted tax rates expected to apply
when the asset is realized or the liability settled.

Both, short-term and long-term deferred taxes were calculated at 24% (24% in 2005).

2006 2005
At 1 January 5,423 6,040
[ncome statement tax credit (Note 5) (928) (615)
Tax on fair value gains M _
At 31 December : 4494 5423

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. '

The following amounts, determined after offsetting, are shown in the balance sheet:
31 December 2006 31 December 2005

Deferred tax assets (1,483) {1,405)
Deferred tax liabilities 5.977 6,828
Total ‘ ‘ 4,494 5423

The deferred tax asset includes CZK 444 million (2005: CZK 462 million) recoverable in less
than twelve months and CZK 1,039 million {(2005: CZK 943 million) recoverable after more
than twelve months. The deferred tax liability includes CZK 723 million (2005: CZK 598
million) payable in less than twelve months and CZK 5,254 million (2005: CZK 6,230 million)
payable in more than twelve months.



Telefonica 02 Czech Republic, a.s. 54
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2006
(all tabular amounts in CZK million)

The deferred tax is determined by these components:

_balance sheet income statement
2006 2005 2006 2005

Amount relating to the crigination and reversal of
termporary differences from:
- property, plant and equipment

and intangible assets 5,977 6,706 (1,026) (BCO)
- trade receivables, inventories :

and other differences (1,479) (1,280} 98 27)
Revatuations of cash flow hedges (4) (3) - -
Amount relating to changes in tax rates - - - 12
Total 4,494 5423 {928) (615)

Deferred income tax related to items charged or credited directly to equity are as follows:

2006 2005
Revaluation of cash flow hedges 4D} 2)
Total [4h} £2)

18  Government social security and pension schemes

The Company is legally required to make contributions to government health, retirement
benefit and unemployment schemes. During 2006 and 2005, the Company paid
contributions ata rate of 35% of gross salaries and is not required to make any
contributions in excess of this statutory rate. The total amount charged to operating
expenses in  respect of this scheme was C(ZK 1,632 million in 2006
(2005: CZK 1,822 million). Employees contribute 12.5% (2005:12.5%) of their gross
salaries.

The Company has a voluntary pension plan for employees under which the Company
makes contributions on behalf of the Company’s employees to approved pension plan
providers, under defined contribution schemes. The Company's contribution depends upon
the number of employees joining the scheme and their age profile. During the year the
Company made contributions of CZK 53 million (2005: CZK 65 million). These
contributions were charged as an operating expense.

In accordance with an annually renegotiated collective labour agreement, the Company
is required to pay CZK 25,000 or CZK 90,000 on retirement depending on the length
of the employee’s service, who have completed not less than five years continuous service.
These benefits are restricted to those employees who retire during the period for which
the labour agreement is in place. The Company is not under any legal or constructive
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obligation to continue providing such benefits beyond the period of such agreement
and therefore, no provisions beyond the period of the agreement are recognised in the
financial statements. Payments made during the year 2006 relating to employee retirement
amounted to CZK 0.1 million {2005: CZK 0.1 million) and were charged as an operating
expense.

All amounts discussed in the above note are included in staff costs (see Note 3).

19  Provisions for liabilities and charges

Short-term Provisions

Regulatory Employee Employee- Benefit

and court redundancy Related Share-based loyalty
decisions costs costs compensation provision Other Total
At 1 January 2005 - - 186 60 489 131 866
Additions during the year 20 10 331 190 441 203 1,195
Reclassification - - - - - 7 7
Utilised during the year - - 398 250 474 (323) 1,445
At 31 December 2005 20 10 119 - A56 18 623
Additions during the year - 107 181 - 481 38 807
Reclassification - - - - - 7 7
Utilised during the year _(6) (28) {117) - 373 (8 602
At 31 December 2006 14 19 JA83 — 264 —25 835

Long-term Provisions

Regulatory Employee

and court related

decisions costs Other Total
At 1 January 2005 1,566 - - - 1,566
Additions during the year 576 - 4 580
Reclassification - - 12 12
Utilised during the year (44) = 3 _(47)
At 31 December 2005 2,098 _- 13 111
Additions during the year 295 72 - 367
Reclassification - - {(7) )
Utilised during the year 434 - - 434
At 31 December 2006 1959 _72 . _6 2,037



Telefénica 02 Czech Republic, a.s. 56
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 Decemnber 2006
(all tabular amounts in CZK million)

With the exception of the regulatory and court decisions and other small items for which the
expected timing of payments is not certain all other provisions are expected to be utilised
within next 12 months from the balance sheet date.

Benefit loyalty provision

Benefit loyalty provision covers the cost of equipment, accessories, gifts and services
provided to participants in the mobile segment’s loyalty program in exchange for credits
awarded primarily for airtime minutes spent. The provision has been recognized based on
past experience of the usage of these credits by loyalty program participants. Expected
outflow of provided benefits is CZK 290 million (2005: CZK 242 million) within one year
and CZK 274 million (2005: CZK 214 million} from one year up to three years.

The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures expected to be required
to settle the obligation (CZK 580 million).

Employee-related costs

Provisions for employee-related costs include expected costs associated with performance
bonuses and provision for termination payments.

Regulatory and court decisions

Provision for regulatory and court decisions is made for legal proceedings involving the
Company (see Note 21).

20 Financial instruments

Net fair values of derivative financial instruments

At the balance sheet date, the total net fair values of derivative financial instruments were
as follows:

Contracts with positive fair value 31 December 2006 31 December 2005
Total = —
Contracts with negative fair value . 31 December 2006 31 December 2005

Instruments not qualifying as hedges

- Interest rate swaps - 2
Cash flow hedges
- Forward foreign exchange centracts 18 aal

Total (Note 16)

=
i
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21 Contingencies

The Company is involved in a variety of legal proceedings that arise from time to time in
the ordinary course of business. The following is a discussion of the significant legal
matters involving the Company:

Interconnect arrangements

The Company has not yet agreed a 2001 price amendment to an agreement with T-Mobile
Czech Republic a.s. governing interconnect arrangements. Whilst in December 2003 the
Czech Telecommunication Office (CTO) effectively ruled in favour of the amounts claimed
(i.e. CZK 899 million for T-Mobile Czech Republic a.s., the outstanding amount is bearing
interest of 0.05% per day), the management believes that the amounts are not
substantiated and are without merit. The Company subsequently obtained adjournment of
the decision execution and lodged an appeal. Based on the legal environment in the Czech
Republic, management estimated maximum probable outflow related to the dispute with
T-Mohile Czech Republic a.s. and such outflow is fully provided in the financial statements.
The management is confident that all risks, which may arise as a result of the litigation, are
adequately provided for in the financial statements. No further disclosure is deemed
appropriate as it could prejudice the Company's position in the dispute.

On 30 June 2005, Vodafone Czech Republic, a.s. (former Cesky Mobil/Oskar Mobil) filed
a petition at the Municipal Court in Prague against the Company for damages in the
amount of CZK 538 million with appurtenances and for returning the unjustified
enrichment of CZK 117 million with appurtenances. The Company is alleged to have failed
to transmit the traffic to networks operated by other mobile operators according to
respective interconnection agreements. The petition was only unofficially delivered from
Vodafone Czech Republic, a.s. and was not served by the court. There was no further
development in this respect in 2006. Furthermore, the Company is a defendant in a case
filed by Vodafone Czech Republic, a.s. in May 2004 asserting causes for alleged breach of
the antitrust law by former Eurotel (damages amounting to CZK 1,043 million). Both
parties filed their expert opinions to the court, no hearing has been ordered until now. The
management believes that all risks, which may arise as a result of Vodafone litigations, are
adequately provided for in the financial statements. No further disclosure is deemed
appropriate as it could prejudice the Company's position in the dispute.

Office for the Protection of Economic Competition proceedings

The Company is subject to administrative proceeding by the Office for the Protection
of Economic Competition (UOHS) relating to the alleged creation of unfair barriers against
development on the market through the application of certain specific price plans for
residential customers. UOHS rendered resolution dated 20 April 2005 imposing a fine to
the Company in the total amount of CZK 210 million, which was consequently, alter the
Company completed and filed a protest, reduced to CZK 205 million. The Company lodged
an appeal in January 2006 and requested adjournment of the decision execution.
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The Court rejected the Company’s proposal and the Company lodged a complaint against
this decision 1o the Supreme Administrative Court on 19 October 2006. The matter is fully
provided in the financial statements.

Other legal matters

The Company is a defendant in a case filed by TELEZ s.r.0. on 3 February 2005 asserting
causes for alleged breach of anti competition law by the Company in connection with
offering pricing plans since January 2002. The amount of the claim is CZK 2,142 million
with appurtenances. No hearing has been ordered in the matter yet. The Company
provided to the court extensive-defence along with proposed items of evidence proving the
legal imperfectness of the sued court’s conduct. The management is satisfied that the
matter is adequately reflected in the financial statements and does not believe the
resclution of this legal proceeding will have a material adverse effect on net income
exceeding the amount of provision already made in the financial statements. No further
“disclosure is deemed appropriate as it could prejudice the Company’s position in the
dispute.

The Company is prosecuted by AUGUSTUS spol. s r.o. for an alleged loss of profit in the
principal amount of approximately CZK 183 million with appurtenances (totalling
approximately additional CZK 257 million as of the end of 2006} relating to the years 1995
— 2001. Augustus claims that the Company illegitimately cancelled a contract for issue of
phone cards, which was signed for unlimited period of time. Based on court decision, the
Company paid an amount of the principal of CZK 83 million and the corresponding
interest in August 2006. Both parties filed subseguently appeal against the court
judgement. The management believes that all risks, which may arise as a result of this
litigation, are adequately provided for in the financial statements. No further disclosure is
deemed appropriate as it could prejudice the Company’s position in the dispute.

The Company is a defendant in several other significant legal cases out of which those that
individually exceed CZK 5 million total to CZK 138 million with appurtenances. The
management believes that the risk of loosing these cases is less than probable and no
provision was made in the financial statements.

22  Commitments
Operating leases
The aggregate future minimum lease payments under operating leases are as follows:

31 December 2006 31 December 2005

No later than 1 year 1,026 991
iater than 1 year and not later than 5 years 3,052 1,827
Later than 5 years 2,431 1.383

Total 6,509 4,20
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The total lease payments relating to operating leasing of property, plant and eguipment
recognised as an expense in 2006 were CZK 1,102 million (2005: CZK 1,157 million).
These lease agreements may contain clauses requiring restoration of the leased site at the
end of the lease term. At present, such costs do not have a material impact on the
Company’s results of operations, financial position, or cash flow and therefore are not
accounted for. |

In 2004 the Company entered into a sale and lease back transaction and now leases the
majority of its car fleet under operating leases. There are no contingent rent obligations.
The lease arrangements include an option to renew the lease after the initial period. Lease
payments are fixed and determinable, however they may be increased to reflect inflation
and other market conditions such as interest rates changes (e.g. an increase in PRIBOR by
more than 2% over a half year). There are no significant restrictions imposed by these lease
arrangements, such as those concerning dividends, additional debt and further leasing.
Total future lease payments relating to this contract in 2006 were CZK 368 million (2005:
CZK 229 million).

Capital commitments

31 December 2006 31 December 2005

Capital expenditure contracted but not provided for
in the financial statements 622 1,541

The majority of contracted amounts relate to the telecommunications network and service
contracts.

23  Service concession arrangements

The Company performs communication activities under the Act on electronic
communications based on a notification to and a certificate from the Czech
Telecommunication Office. In accordance with Section 13 of the Act on electronic
communications, on 12 August 2005, the Company delivered a notification to the Czech
Telecommunication Office (further CTO) on the performance of a communication activity,
which is under Section 8 of this Act a business activity in electronic communications.
Relating documentation required by the Act on electronic communications was provided
on 29 September 2005. Subsequently, on 11 October 2005, the CTO issued a certificate
confirming that a notification on the performance of a communication activity was
received. A notification of the changes has been filed before the transfer of assets and
liabilities.
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The communication activities include (territory of the Czech Republic):

a)  Public fixed and mobile network of electronic communications
by  Public network for the transfer of radic and TV signal

¢} Public fixed and mobile telephone network

d}  Publicly accessible telepheone services

e} Other voice services

fy  Rent of circuits

g) Transmission of radio and TV signal

h) Transfers of data

i) Internet access services.

In accordance with the Act on electronic communicaticns, the CTO determined the scope
and new detail conditions for the provision of each particular service within the universal
service including the selection of providers. The CTO issued, based on the results of
tenders, decisions according to which the Company was determined as the provider of the
following particular services:

Periodic issuance of telephone directories with numbers of participants of the
publicly accessible telephone service and access of end users to these directories in
accordance with Section 38, Para 2, letter ¢) of the Act on electronic
communications (on 21 December 2005);

Information service on the numbers of participants of the publicly accessible
telephone service in accordance with Section 38, Para 2, letter d) of the Act on
electronic communications (on 21 December 2005);

Public pay telephones in accordance with Section 38, Para 2, letter e) of the Act on
electronic communications {(on 13 March 2006);

Access for disabled to the public telephone service in accordance with Section 38,
Para 2, letter f) of the Act on electronic communications {on 12 July 2006);

Supplementary services in accordance with Section 38, Para 2, letter g) of the Act
on electronic communications (on 28 July 2006);

Special price plans in accordance with Section 38, Para 3 of the Act on electronic
communications {on 1 September 2006); the Company is not the only provider.

CTO also published on 1 September 2006 its decision not to impose the duty to provide
the USO service of connection at a fixed location to the public telephone network and the
service of access to publicly available telephone services at a fixed location, mainly due to
the high level of deployment of these services and high level of substitutability of mobile
services.
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Mobile segment:

The Company provides mobile services of electronic communications in the 900 and 1800
MHz frequency bands under the Global System for Mobile Communication (“GSM") and in
the 450 MHz frequency band under the Nordic Mobile Telephone (“NMT") standard
(collectively, “mobile services”). In June 2005 all subscribers of a voice service in the NMT
450 Network were transferred to the GSM Network. The NMT 450 Network is used for
broadband mobile access to Internet using COMA2000 1*EV-DO (Code-Division Multiple
Access Evolution Data Optimized “CDMA”) technology in the 450 MHz frequency band.
Mobile segment operates services based on Universal Mobile Telecommunications System
("UMTS") standard since 1 December 2005. Mobile ficense 450 MHz, mobile license GSM
and UMTS have remaining life 5, 10 and 15 years, respectively. Relative to the current
requlatory and business environment in the Czech Republic, contractual, legal, regulatory,
competitive or other economic factors may limit the period during which the Company can
benefit from the use of these licenses in the future.

The original 450 MHz and GSM operating licenses were granted for a period of twenty
years from the signing of the agreement for the criginal 450 MHz license in 1991 and from
the granting of the GSM license in 1996 for use of the 900 spectrum. In 1999, former
Furotel acquired an additional GSM 1800 spectrum under its existing GSM license.
In 2002, the GSM license to both spectrums was renewed and is currently valid for the
remaining period of ten years. In 2002, former Eurotel renewed its 450 MHz license; the
current license enables the Company to offer any internationally recognized public mobile
telecommunication services on a frequency of 450 MHz. Mobile segment currently
provides on this frequency broadband Internet access services using CDMA technology.
The license is currently valid for the remaining pericd of five years.

In December 2001, former Eurotel acquired the UMTS license, which has been granted for
a period of twenty years. Under the license, former Eurotel was provided with deferred
payment terms by the CTO to finance the license acquisition. In December 2003, former
Eurotel signed an amendment to its original UMTS license agreement, by which
the original launch of the service was extended by one year. According to the terms of this
new amendment, former Eurotel agreed to pay the UMTS obligation in full during 2004 in
exchange for a forgiveness of 2003 and 2004 interest on the deferred payments provided
as part of the UMTS license agreement.

No additional expenses connected with renewai of the individual licences, nor any
limitations connected with the renewal of licences, are expected in accordance with the
existing interpretation of regulatory provisions.
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24  Share capital and reserves

31 December 2006 31 December 2005

Nominal value per ordinary share (CZK) 100 100
Number of shares 322,089,890 322,089,890
Nominal value per share with special rights (CZK)* 1,000 1,000
Number of shares* 1 1
Ordinary shares (in CZK million) : 32,208 32,209

* One share awned by the National Property Fund of the Czech Republic bore special decision-making rights
in accordance with the statutes of the Company. These special rights included namely decisions regarding the
liquidation of the Company changes in its activities, sale or lease of the Company ar of its assets. This share
was assigned to Telefonica, S.A. within the transferred 51.1% stake in the Company (see General
information). From this date, the share has not borne special decision-making rights.

At 31 December 2005, shareholdings in the Company were as follows:

Telefonica, S.A. £9.4%
Other shareholders 30.6%

At 31 Décember 2006, shareholdings in the Company were as follows:

Telefénica, S.A. | | 69.4%
Other shareholders : . 30.6%

Funds include a statutory reserve fund of CZK 6,261 million {2005: CZK 5,903 million} that
is not distributable under ruling legislation.

25 Hedging reserve

Balance at 1 fanuary 2005 47
Fair value losses in period (36)
Fair value losses transfer to net profit 72

Deferred tax on fair value losses -

Balance at 31 December 2005 0
Fair value losses in period (34)
Fair value losses transfer to net profit : 26
Deferred tax on fair value losses ' _1

Balance at 31 December 2006 18)
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26  Cash generated from operating activities

Year ended
31 December 2006 31 December 2005

Net profit 8,322 6,102
Adjustments for:
Tax (Note 5) 2,772 2,665
Depreciation {Note 8) 14,018 15,011
Amortisation (Note 9) 2,708 2,778
Impairment loss (Note 8, 9, 10) ' 253 1,261
Disposals of obsolete assets 49 76
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (96) (111)
Net interest and other charges . 245 701
Forefgn exchange (gainsy/losses (net) ' {203) : (347)
Fair value changes 29 (119
Increase in provisions 62 __ 43
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 28,159 28,060
Decrease/{increase) in trade and other receivables {98) {538)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories {753) (211)
{Decrease)increase in trade and other payables 868 423
Cash generated from operations 28,176 27.7

27  Related party transactions

The acquisition process and the transfer of majority ownership of NPF was completed
on 16 June 2005 by paying-off the balance of 90% purchase price by Telefénica, S.A, and
NPF divested 51.1% shares in the Company. Telefénica effectively used its rights at the
General Shareholders Meeting, which took place on 23 June 2005.

The intercompany transactions between the Company and the Telefonica Group
companies are disclosed from the date Telefénica, S.A. gained effective control, i.e.
23 June 2005 to 31 December 2006. With respect to the majority ownership of NPF
holding to 16 June 2005, all transactions between the Company and the NPF companies
are disclosed only to that date.

The Company provides services to all related parties on normal commercial terms. Sales
and purchase transactions with related parties are based on contractual agreements
negotiated on normal commercial terms and conditions and at market prices. Outstanding
balances of assets and liabilities are unsecured, interest free (excl. financial assets used for
financing) and the settlement occurs either in cash or by offsetting. The financial assets
balances are tested for the impairment at the balance sheet date, and no allowance or
write off incurred.
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The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

l. Parent company:

a) Dividend

Telefénica S.A.

Il. Other related parties — Telefonica Group:

a) Sales of services and goods
Telefénica companies

b) Purchases of sérvices and goods
Telefonica companies
. C) Capital purchases

Telefénica companies

d) Receivables

Telefénica companies

e) Payables

Telefénica companies

f) Short-term receivables (interest)

Telefénica companies
g) Interest income

Telefdnica companies

h} Cash equivalents

Telefdnica companies

31 December 2006

31 December 2005

10,061 -

Year ended
31 December 2006 31 December 2005
597 81

Year ended
31 December 2006 31 December 2005
=64 147

Year ended

31 December 2006

31 December 2005

18

31 December 2006

31 December 2005

195

31 December 2006

59

31 December 2005

117

31 December 2006
10

25

31 December 2005

Year ended

31 December 2006

18

31 December 2006

3,605

31 December 2005

31 December 2005

The list of the Telefdnica companies with which the Company had any transaction in 2006
includes the following entities: Telefénica de Espana, S.A.U., 02 Germany GmBH& CO.OHG,
Telefénica Deutschland GMBH, 02 (UK) Ltd., 02 Communications (Ireland) Ltd., Telefonica
Servicios Integrales de Distribucion, S.A.U, Atento Servicios Técnicos y Consultoria, S.L.,
Telefénica Méviles Espana, S.A.U., Telefonica Mdviles Argentina, S.A., Pléyade Peninsular,
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Correduria de Seguros y Reaseguros del Grupo Telefénica, S.A., Telefonica de Contenidos,
S.AU., Portugal Telecom, S.G.P.S., S.A., Telefonica Europe, B.V., Telefénica International
Wholesale Services, S.L., Telefonica Gestion de Servicios Compartidos, S.A., Telefénica 02
Services, spol. s r.0., CZECH TELECOM Germany GmbH, CZECH TELECOM Austria GmbH,
Telefonica O2 Slovakia s.r.o. and CenTrade, a.s.

IIl. Other related parties — State entities controlled by NPF*

a) Sales of services and goods ~ Year ended

31 December 2006 31 December 2005
State controlled entities - 56
b) Purchases of services and goods. Year ended

31 December 2006 31 December 2005
State controlled entities - 116

) Receivables
31 December 2006 31 December 2005
2

State controlled entities

d) Payables _
31 December 2006 31 December 2005
25

State controlled entities _-
* NPF did not hold any shares in the Company after 16 June 2005, and accordingly the respective related
party sales and purchases have been prepared for period from 1 January 2005 to 16 June 2005. The state
controlled entities include all companies that are owned by the State through NPF Czech Republic. Entities
controlled by NPF consist of number of commercial (joint stock or limited liability) companies operating across
different industries, and they do not include the government or governmental bodies. Accordingly,
transactions with ministries and other state agencies are not treated as related party transactions.

IV. Other related parties

a)  Key management compensation

Members of the Board of Directors and of the Supervisory Board of the Telefénica 02
Czech Republic, a.s., were provided with benefits as follows:

Year ended
31 December 2006 31 December 2005

Salaries and other shart-term benefits 86 254
Board share an profit - -
Stock appreciation rights - 180
Non-competition clause - 15
Termination benefits - 58
Capital life insurance - 16
Personal indemnification insurance 12 16

l

2
B |

Total
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b}  Loans to related parties

There were no loans to members of Board of Directors and Supetvisory Board in 2005 and
2006.

No other loan was provided to related parties by the Company.

28  Principal subsidiary undertakings

Company's Country of

Name interest incorporation Activity
1. Telefanica 02 Services, spol. s r.o. 100% Czech Network and consuitancy servicas
Republic in telecommunications
2. SPTTELECOM (Czech Republic) 100% Netherlands Financing other entities in the
Finance B.V. Group
3. CZECH TELECOM Germany GmbH 100% Germany Data transmission services
4, CZECH TELECOM Austria GmbH 100% Austria Data transmission services
5. Telefénica O2 Slovakia s.r.o. 100% Slovakia Mobile telephony, internet and
data transmission services
6. CenTrade, a.s. 100% Czech E-business company providing
Republic market place services

On 20 December 2001 former Eurotel acquired a 100% ownership interest in a Hungarian
registered limited liability company, Trigo Global Services Ltd. (*Trigo™) for CZK 1 million.
The subsidiary was engaged in the contracting of labour services to former Eurotel
for periods prior to January 2004. In September 2004, Trigo commenced the process
of voluntary liquidation. On 8 April 2005 the process of liquidation was finished and assets
were transferred to former Eurote!l {(amounts of assets transferred are not material
to the Company's results). Currency translation adjustment upon complete liquidation
of the investment in Trigo, the amount attributable to that entity and accumulated
in the translation adjustment component of equity (CZK 13 million) was removed from the
separate component of equity and was reported as part of the gain on liquidation
of the investment. At the date of liquidation goodwill was fully written off.

As of 1 January 2007, CenTrade, a.s. commenced the process of voluntary liquidation.
The process is still in progress, the Company increased its investment and paid in capital
which would aim to the smooth liquidation process.
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29 Post balance sheet events

In February 2007, management of the Company approved an intention to provide Orange
Slovensko, a.s. and T-Mobile Slovensko, a.s. with a guarantee for potential commitments
incurred towards Telefénica 02 Slovakia s.r.o. from these companies based on the mutually
concluded interconnection agreements.

The Company is in process of implementing measures to increase efficiency which include
also real estates usage optimisation. Real estates’ optimisation focus amongst other actions
on reduction of employees’ territorial diversification as well as move into a new headquarter
in 2007. There might be a potential to divest certain real estates as a conseguence
of the mentioned optimisation plan. The Company has engaged external advisors to assist
with the analysis and process of the potential disposal. As a part of the process being carried
out the advisors have introduced the selected properties available into the real estates
market.

There were no other events, which have occurred subsequent to the year-end, which
would have a material impact on the finandial statements at 31 December 2006.



